

Dr P K Mohanty and Partners

Inspection report

The Witham Health Centre
4 Mayland Road
Witham
Essex
CM8 2UX
Tel: 01376 337272
www.drmohanty-withamhc.nhs.uk

Date of inspection visit: 30/05/2019 Date of publication: 10/07/2019

This report describes our judgement of the quality of care at this service. It is based on a combination of what we found when we inspected, information from our ongoing monitoring of data about services and information given to us from the provider, patients, the public and other organisations.

Ratings

Overall rating for this location	Requires improvement	
Are services safe?	Requires improvement	
Are services effective?	Requires improvement	
Are services caring?	Good	
Are services responsive?	Good	
Are services well-led?	Good	

Overall summary

We carried out an announced comprehensive inspection at PK Mohanty & Partners, known as the Witham Health Centre on 30th May 2019 as part of our inspection programme. This practice was previously rated requires improvement when we carried out inspections in April 2017 and in March 2018.

At the previous inspections, we found breaches of the regulations in relation to the management of high-risk medicines, the availability and storage of emergency medicines, learning from significant events and low patient satisfaction in relation to the GPs working at the practice.

We based our judgement of the quality of care at this service on a combination of:

- what we found when we inspected
- information from our ongoing monitoring of data about services and
- information from the provider, patients, the public and other organisations.

We have rated this practice as requires improvement overall.

We rated the practice as good for providing caring, responsive and well led services because:

- Staff dealt with patients with kindness and respect and involved them in decisions about their care.
- The practice organised and delivered services to meet patients' needs. Patients could access care and treatment in a timely way.
- The way the practice was led and managed promoted the delivery of high-quality, person-centre care.

We rated the practice as requires improvement for safe services because:

- On the day of the inspection we found that checks for the high-risk medication Lithium were not being carried out
- Although safety alerts were received and distributed these were not acted upon.
- There was no book for the recording of controlled drugs.
- Fire training was outdated for some staff.
- No infection control audit had been carried out.
- PAT Testing had expired.
- The training for infection control had expired for the infection control lead.

We rated the population groups long-term conditions, working age people and those experiencing poor mental health as requires improvement because:

- The clinical outcome indicators for 2017/2018 for people with long term conditions and those experiencing poor mental health was below local and national averages.
 Although the unverified data from 2018/2019 showed an upward trend in some areas these figures were still below the national averages and there had been a downward trend since our initial inspection in 2017.
- Cancer data was lower than local and national averages in some areas.

The cumulative effect of rating three population groups in this way meant that the effective domain was rated as requires improvement.

The areas where the practice **must** make improvements are:

- Ensure care and treatment is provided in a safe way to patients.
- Establish effective systems and processes to ensure good governance in accordance with the fundamental standards of care.

The areas where the practice **should** make improvements are:

- Ensure training of staff is kept up to date including fire and infection control.
- Continue to monitor and review the prescribing of antibiotics and hypnotics and all high-risk medicines.
- Continue to strengthen and monitor improvement relating to patient satisfaction.
- Monitor and review bowel cancer screenings and the number of new cancer cases treated which resulted from a two week wait (TWW) referral.
- Review current systems and process to identify carers to ensure they receive appropriate support.
- Review the guidance and legislation in relation to the storage and issue of controlled drugs in use at the practice, to ensure they are being followed.

Details of our findings and the evidence supporting our ratings are set out in the evidence tables.

Dr Rosie Benneyworth BM BS BmedSci MRCGP

Chief Inspector of Primary Medical Services and Integrated Care.

Population group ratings

Older people	Good	
People with long-term conditions	Requires improvement	
Families, children and young people	Good	
Working age people (including those recently retired and students)	Requires improvement	
People whose circumstances may make them vulnerable	Good	
People experiencing poor mental health (including people with dementia)	Requires improvement	

Our inspection team

Our inspection team was led by a CQC lead inspector. The team included a GP specialist adviser.

Background to Dr P K Mohanty and Partners

The Provider of this service is PK Mohanty & Partners, which is located at Witham Health Centre, 4 Mayland Road, Witham, Essex, CM8 2UX. The provider is registered to provide the following regulated activities: Family planning, Treatment of disease, disorder and injury, Maternity & midwifery services, Surgical procedures and Diagnostic & screening procedures.

The Witham Health Centre has approximately 6000 patients registered with this practice.

There were two GPs in total, one male and one female. The practice had one practice nurse, one nurse practitioner and one healthcare assistant. Clinicians were supported by a practice manager and a team of reception and administrative staff.

The practice population is predominantly White British with an age distribution of male and female with patients mainly in the working age population group. The patients came from a range of income categories with an average

for the practice being in the ninth most deprived category. One being the most deprived and ten being the least deprived. The practice has a higher than average number of patients over the age of 65 years and about 9% of patients are over the age of 75 years which is in line with local averages but higher than national averages. Around 20% were under the age of 18 which is higher than local averages and national averages.

The practice is part of an extended access service which is commissioned by the Mid Essex CCG. This service operates from six hub locations across the area. GP and nurse appointments provided by this service can be accessed between 6.30pm and 8pm on weekdays and also on Saturday and Sunday mornings. Appointments for this service can be booked via the practice or by calling NHS 111 if outside of the practice opening hours. Between the hours of 8pm and 8am out of hours clinical services can be accessed by calling NHS 111.

This section is primarily information for the provider

Requirement notices

Action we have told the provider to take

The table below shows the legal requirements that the service provider was not meeting. The provider must send CQC a report that says what action it is going to take to meet these requirements.

Regulated activity	Regulation
Diagnostic and screening procedures Family planning services	Regulation 12 HSCA (RA) Regulations 2014 Safe care and treatment
Maternity and midwifery services Surgical procedures Treatment of disease, disorder or injury	 How the regulation was not being met: Medicines and Healthcare Regulatory Agency alerts were not actioned, and oversight was not maintained. This was in breach of Regulation 12 (1) of the Health and Social Care Act 2008 (Regulated Activities) Regulations 2014.

Regulated activity Regulation Diagnostic and screening procedures Regulation 17 HSCA (RA) Regulations 2014 Good governance Family planning services How the regulation was not being met: Maternity and midwifery services • There was a lack of an effective system in place to Surgical procedures improve performance over time in relation to QOF data Treatment of disease, disorder or injury for patients with long-term conditions and for patients suffering with poor mental health. This was in breach of Regulation 17 of the Health and Social Care Act 2008 (Regulated Activities) Regulations 2014.